
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny 
Panel to be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Monday, 16 March 2020

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Committee Room 2, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of meeting held on 17 February 2020 and matters arising (Pages 1 - 4)

4  Environmental Protection Team - Anti-Social Behaviour 
Prevention Activities Update 

(Pages 5 - 14)

5  Waste and Cleansing Statistics (Pages 15 - 22)

6  Work Programme 2019/20 (Pages 23 - 26)

7  Exclusion of the Public 

8  Waste Strategy and Greater Manchester Contract (to follow) 

9  Any other business 

10  Next Meeting - 18 May 2020 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013
Mike Relph Senior Democratic Services Adviser E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL

17th February 2020

Meeting commenced: 2.00 p.m.
“                  ended: 3:15 p.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Burch - in the Chair

Councillors Barnes, Fletcher, Humphreys, Mullen, Ryan, Walker, Joan 
Walsh and Warner.

Councillor David Lancaster - Lead Member for Environment and 
Community Safety

OFFICERS:   David Seager - Assistant Director, Operational and Commercial 
     Services

           Jeanette Staley - Head of Community Safety
 Mike Relph - Senior Democratic Services Adviser

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Karen Garrido, Mullen 
and Turner. 

2. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 20th January, 2020, were approved 
as a correct record.

3. PLACE DIRECTORATE BUDGET 2019/20 MONITORING

The Strategic Director for Place, submitted a report providing an update in relation to
the budget position of his service groups, with specific reference to the following:-

 Revenue Budget 2019/20
 Capital Programme 2019/20
 Progress made towards the agreed savings programme 2019/20.

The Panel gave consideration to those particular elements of the wider Place 
Directorate Budget which fell within their particular scrutiny remit.

Reference was made to charges made for pest control services. Councillor David 
Lancaster commented these had previously been reluctantly introduced as part of 
the City Council’s wider budget process, but remained competitive with comparable 
charges introduced by neighbouring local authorities in Greater Manchester 

RESOLVED: THAT the report, specifically the Revenue Budget 2019/20, Capital
Programme 2019/20, progress in achieving agreed savings for 2019/20, and further

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



measures to bring forecast expenditure back in line with the budget, be noted.

4. EMERGENCY PLANNING AND BUSINESS CONTINUITY APPROACH UPDATE

The Director for Place submitted a report providing an update on progress made 
jointly, by Salford’s emergency planning lead and AGMA CCRU (Association of 
Greater Manchester Authorities Civil Contingencies Resilience Unit) in relation to 
emergency preparedness and business continuity since January 2019. The report 
also detailed further work undertaken during the same period, to further develop the 
necessary skills and expertise to effectively discharge duties such as those 
highlighted under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004.

Members raised issues and commented on, and noted them, as follows:-

(a) Was there an ability to recoup costs incurred as result of power failures caused 
by utility companies? Such compensation was administered by Electricity North West 
and wherever feasible, the City Council took every reasonable action to recover any 
costs, which had been incurred as a result of emergencies.
 
(b) What were the nature of the emergency planning exercises undertaken? These 
were wide ranging and extensive. Often these took a desktop form, but on occasions 
could have a live incident simulation element.

(c) Was there any responsibility for emergency planning in schools? While links were 
made with schools and appropriate reasonable support provided, they were 
generally responsible for their own emergency planning.

(d) Thanks were extended to City Council officer’s response to a recent event in 
Barton.

RESOLVED:  THAT RESOLVED: THAT the report be noted, particularly:-

 The enhanced resilience to Salford City Council emergency
planning and response capability since January 2019

 The robust programme of continuous maintenance, learning
and improvement in place

 The breadth of incidents dealt with by Salford City Council and
the learning identified;

 The forward plan for 2020
 The work underway around Business Continuity Planning

5. GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE AND CRIME PANEL ROLES AND 
RESPONSIBILITIES AND PROGRESS AGAINST THE DEPUTY MAYORS 
STANDING TOGETHER PLAN EMERGENCY PLANNING AND BUSINESS 
CONTINUITY APPROACH UPDATE

The Director for Place submitted a report indicating in November 2019, the Chair of 
Panel, together with Salford’s Lead Member for Environment and Community 
Safety had been invited to attend a meeting with the Greater Manchester (GM) 
Deputy Mayor for Policing, Crime, Fire and Criminal Justice, in order to highlight the 

Page 2



role of the Greater Manchester Police and Crime Panel in scrutinising the work of the 
GM Deputy Mayor. In addition, the GM Deputy Mayor shared with them, progress 
reports in respect of the three priorities of the “Standing Together” plan, which was 
the GM Deputy Mayor’s Police and Crime Plan. This report provided details and 
summaries of the information which had been provided at this session, so it could 
now be shared with the other members of the Panel.

Members raised issues and commented on, and noted them, as follows:-

(a) The Panel’s role in considering the policing precept on the Council Tax set in 
Salford.
 
(b) The increase in domestic abuse incidents. It was acknowledged there was a 
slight increase, but this could be attributed to a greater willingness of victims of such 
abuse, to report it, arising from campaigns to raise public awareness of the issue and 
the support available. 

(c) Reference was made to the statistic that, only 59% of people surveyed had 
confidence in the way Greater Manchester Police (GMP) dealt with emergency 
incidents. It was commented that the survey findings could be subjective on the part 
of respondents, as a result, the GM mayor had committed to review data on a 
quarterly basis and to assess this, against the actual circumstances of reported 
incidents, rather than purely on the perceptions of responders. It was commented a 
common perception amongst the public, was police services were under resourced. 
This was a major factor which potentially skewed feedback, but nonetheless 
remained relevant. The recent budgetary restraints which had seen reduction in 
GMP personnel, both police officers and support staff, despite best efforts to mitigate 
them, also had to be recognised as having a detrimental impact on the delivery of 
services and ultimately the public’s perception of them.

(d)  Continuing problems following the introduction of the GMP iOPS computer 
system, particularly the sharing of information and crime statistics with elected 
members at a ward level. It was indicated this had caused some problems in this 
regard, but ward councillors continued to be kept up to date with regard to local 
matters, as well as provided with the supporting data, though not necessarily in the 
formats previously used. Work continued to resolve the problems with iOPS, which in 
turn would allow members to receive an enhanced level of briefing on local matters 
relevant to them.

(e) The use of nurses in police stations, particularly able to deal with persons 
suffering with mental health issues. This was a Greater Manchester wide initiative, 
which had recently begun to be rolled out.  

(f) It was anticipated that each ward within Salford would each have a specific 
named police officer and police community safety officer, with the intention these 
would become the first point of contact for members of the public for non-emergency 
issues, in turn developing closer links between the local community and the police.

Page 3



6. WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

Members gave consideration to the Panel’s Work Programme for 2019/20. 

It was suggested that consideration be given to a visit to a school in Salford to observe 
the school meals service

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the Panel’s Work Programme for 2019/20, be noted.

                      (2) THAT an update on the activities of the Environmental Protection 
Team in terms of tackling anti-social behaviour, be placed on the agenda for the next 
meeting of the Panel.

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Details were provided of promotional material encouraging the correct disposal of 
chewing gum, preventing the anti-social problem it could cause.

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

It was noted that the next meeting of the Panel would be held on Monday, 16th March, 
2020, commencing at 2.00 pm. 

Page 4



1

REPORT OF THE LEAD MEMBER OF ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY 
SAFETY 

TO COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBOUTHOODS SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

ON

16th March 2020

TITLE:  Environmental Protection (EP)team - Anti-social behaviour update

RECOMMENDATIONS: That the contents of this update report be noted

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND DETAILS:

The EP Team
The Environmental Protection team comprises:

 1x Lead Practitioner, 
 5x Level 2 (Anti-social Behaviour),(Statutory Nuisance),(Air 

Quality),(Contaminated Land),(‘Permitting’) 
 4x Level 1 officers (Anti-social Behaviour & Statutory Nuisance).

What we do 
In addition to dealing with air and land quality and statutory nuisance, the EP team is 
a key partner in the Community Safety Partnership, tackling anti-social behaviour 
across the city. The Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, introduced an 
array of measures to tackle anti-social behaviour including; Community  Protection 
Notices (CPN), Criminal Behaviour Orders (CBO), Closure Orders and Public Space 
Protection Orders (PSPO) and these are used proportionately and to great effect 
across the City of Salford. 

Anti-social Behaviour vs. Statutory Nuisance
Some conduct which is reported as ‘anti-social behaviour’ is actually more 
appropriately dealt with by way of statutory nuisance legislation. 

Between 1st October 2018 and 27th January 2020, the team received 471 complaints 
of anti-social behaviour.

Between 1st October 2018 and 27th January 2020, the team received 874 complaints 
of ‘Noise Nuisance’ of the types normally associated with anti-social behaviour. Of 
those, the highest three contributors were; Music (34.5%), ‘People’ Noise (27.5%), and 
Dogs and other animals (18%).

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



2

The team cohesion and balance of experience in relevant areas, is best demonstrated 
in the following two cases; which gives a snapshot of the cases the team can deal with.

SCC vs. T
What started out in early 2019, as a complaint with regard to a neighbour playing his 
music at unacceptable levels and hours, ended with a criminal conviction and a five 
year Criminal Behaviour Order (CBO).   

The team had repeatedly tried to engage with the neighbour, T who sadly, despite 
guidance and advice from officers, continued in his conduct. 

It became necessary to obtain warrants of ‘entry and seizure’ for T’s address, on two 
separate occasions. Both were successfully executed and equipment seized on both 
occasions. Again T continued in his conduct and subsequent proceedings for the 
breach of the ‘noise abatement notice’, resulted in him being convicted and fined. The 
fine was subsequently reduced to £400, with a £30 victim surcharge and costs of 
£1,500 were awarded to the Council.

We then immediately made a successful application for a CBO, believed to be the first 
of its kind (i.e. for music/noise nuisance) in Greater Manchester. 

The CBO restricts the behaviour in order to prevent similar re-offending and a breach 
results in imprisonment. The CBO in this specific case will last for five years and 
officers continue to monitor the situation. 

SCC vs. R,   In June 2018, the Environmental Protection team received information in 
relation to weekend skip fires taking place at a local business operated by R, shortly 
afterwards there was a huge fire at the site which resulted in substantial damage and 
loss to neighbouring businesses. At its height, there were 15 fire engines/appliances 
in attendance and nearby streets were closed due to the risks posed to residents in 
the immediate area. The incident drew attention from the press and featured in the 
Manchester Evening News and Bolton Evening News. 

On 18th July 2018, Environmental Protection officers served the owner, R, with an 
abatement notice under s80 Environmental Protection 1990, to cease any fires taking 
place on the site with immediate effect. The abatement notice was subsequently 
breached on multiple occasions, witnessed by a council officer on each occasion, and 
it was necessary to bring proceedings against the individual, a sole trader. At the 
hearing in the Magistrates Court on 5th December 2019 a guilty plea was entered, R 
was fined a total of £4,679 and ordered to pay a £170 victim surcharge. Costs of £2,610 
were awarded to the Council.

Community Protection Notice Warnings (CPNW)
From October 2018 to January 2020, 7x CPNWs were issued with regards to; 
consumption of alcohol, loitering, causing harassment, alarm and distress to the public 
and staff of local businesses, criminal  damage, setting fires, group size/association & 
incitement, possession of knives, loud music, barking dog, threatening behaviour and 
verbal abuse.

Page 6



3

Community Protection Notices (CPN)
From October 2018 to December 2019, 4x CPNs were issued with regards to; 
consumption of alcohol, loitering and group size.

Civil Injunctions (CI), P
On 10th November 2019, P, an individual already well known to SCC and Greater 
Manchester Police due to his illegal ‘squatting’ activities in vacant premises, brought 
the focus of the national press on Eccles. From the window of a vacant public house, 
in which he was ‘squatting’, he discharged fireworks over the Remembrance Day 
Service taking place in the street below. His actions caused panic and fear amongst 
those present.  

He was immediately arrested and put before the next available court, where he pleaded 
guilty and was sentenced to a period of immediate imprisonment of 16 weeks. P was 
released and immediately recalled to prison for failing to comply with his licence 
conditions. He is still in custody with a release date set to March. The team are 
imminently due to serve him with a CPNW and are developing a case to further serve 
him with a CI.  

YOUTH A
In the late summer, early autumn of 2018, a group of youths were behaving anti-
socially in and around Eccles town centre. This culminated in a serious incident at the 
Eccles metro-link platform where the male victim, believed to be homeless, was 
violently ‘fly-kicked’ in the back by YOUTH A
 
On 29th of October 2018, the authority was granted a civil injunction, with a power of 
arrest, for incidents in Eccles town centre including: abusive behaviour, refusing to 
leave premises and assault. YOUTH A breached the injunction on multiple occasions 
and was dealt with by Greater Manchester Police, who in May 2019 successfully 
obtained a CBO. 

The CBO was also breached and YOUTH A was subsequently sentenced to a period 
remanded in youth custody. 

Youth ‘B’
Well known to the Police and the local authority, Youth ‘B’ is the subject of an imminent 
application for a (youth) CI to prohibit him from entering parts of Salford, including 
specific businesses and associating with other offenders or being present in large 
groups. A regular contributor to anti-social behaviour and criminal incidents in various 
locations across Salford, it will also be proportionate and necessary to prohibit Youth 
‘B’ from being in possession of any pedal cycle that is not ‘registered/notified’ with the 
Police.  

H.
An individual who is well known to the Police and apparently suffering from severe 
alcoholism. H is the subject of an imminent application for a civil injunction to prevent 
her from entering parts of the city of Salford including specific addresses. A regular 
caller to the emergency services for the last 4 years, H has a partner who is resident 
in the Langworthy area and has continued perpetrate of anti-social behaviour when 
visiting/staying with that partner. In addition to necessary and proportionate 

Page 7



4

enforcement, the team are working with relevant agencies to get H appropriate help 
and support.

PROTESTS; Summer 2019
An otherwise peaceful protest on council lawns in the summer of 2019, was apparently 
hijacked by individuals/groups with a wider agenda. This was the culmination of a 
campaign of hostility and harassment specifically directed at two council social workers 
and subsequently, elected member(s).  

This prompted a full review of all powers available to the authority, an 
investigation/enforcement strategy was put into place and the offer of work and home 
security reviews identified for two specific employees. 

Although they ultimately declined our assistance, it was very important to our service 
to be able to demonstrate to those (and other) colleagues that we will use every legal 
power and tool to support them in being able to perform their duties. 

Salford Secure At Home
In early 2019, the Environmental Protection team partnered with Greater Manchester 
Fire & Rescue Service (GMFRS) to deliver “Salford Secure at Home”, as part of the  
‘Safe and Well’ scheme. This program of home security surveys, which include the 
installation of crime prevention/detection measures to potential and actual, vulnerable 
and historic victims, has been of particular support to victims of burglaries, domestic 
abuse and also to those families who are ‘at risk of threat to life’ through no fault of 
their own due to family members’ criminal associations.  

From 1st October 2018 to present, 90 victims of crime/vulnerable victims have received 
a security survey.

From 1st October 2018 to present, 165 ‘Sanctuary’ referrals (Domestic violence) have 
received a security survey.

Unfortunately in February 2020 GMFRS informed officers that it would not be able to 
continue to develop and deliver this project due to staffing and other issues within 
GMFRS. However, officers will seek to apply the learning gathered from the project 
and build on the positive connections formed with GMFRS colleagues to identify and 
assist vulnerable residents. 

NSL - Environmental Protection Enforcement Contract  
In late 2018 / early 2019, the Environmental Protection team partnered with a new 
Environmental Enforcement Contractor (NSL) making our City a cleaner place to live, 
work and visit. 

1408 x Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) were issued for non-parking offences (litter etc.) 
in the first 12 months; of which 962 paid (68% - reasons include; provision of false 
details, administrative error, progression to court proceedings and evidential issues.) 

As part of that FPN process, we joined Manchester City Council in pioneering the use 
of digital upload of these particular cases to court, as part of the SJP (Single Justice 
Procedure).The obvious savings in resources (paper, print cost, and staff time) 

Page 8



5

currently assists the authority in meeting tight budgetary controls and providing a more 
streamlined efficient service. It is important to note that all of the required steps have 
been put into place by officers within Regulatory Services, in preparation for the whole 
of the authority to embrace the inevitable move to fully digital caseloads by Her 
Majesty’s Courts and Tribunal Service (HMCTS).

In late 2018, the team’s Environmental Crime officer was transferred to the Waste 
Services team.  

In late 2019, the management of the NSL contract was transferred to the Waste 
Services team.

Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPO)
In 2017 a number of orders, made under old legislation, automatically transferred to 
Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOs). This included alley gating orders, dog 
control orders and alcohol consumption.

Salford QUAYS PSPO; 
The PSPO which had been in place, was not renewed prior to expiry in August 2018 
as it was necessary to review and amend the prohibitions in order to make them legal, 
more appropriate and clearer to understand. Proposed prohibitions have to pass the 
required legal test (s59 Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014), before 
the making of any PSPO. The prohibitions were streamlined accordingly and the 
subject of (unauthorised) swimming addressed with all key partners holding 
responsibility/ownership of the waterways and bordering land. The addition of the 
‘unauthorised swimming’ prohibition was specifically in order to be able to evidence 
the individual’s anti-social conduct and unwillingness to adhere to legal requirement at 
the earliest stage possible. Once identified, the individual would already have been 
found to have breached the prohibitions of the PSPO and the next steps could be 
taken, where appropriate; Acceptable Behaviour Agreements (ABA) or those tools and 
powers mentioned above We intend to publicise suitably redacted details of the actions 
and consequences of any offenders we identify. Following review of footage from last 
summer, we have successfully identified five of the six target individuals and where 
possible firm positive action will be taken.

 
The consultation process enabled the team to engage with all relevant partners, 
including local businesses and the residents themselves. 

As a result of that, there will be a formal group in place to discuss enforcement 
strategies and concerns around the Quays comprised of; Neighbour Manager, 
Neighbourhood Policing Team (Inspector & Sgt), Environmental Protection team (Lead 
Practitioner) and three key representatives from the residents forum. The initial 
meeting was very productive for all present and all parties involved gained a fuller 
understanding of expectations and the reality of the legal obstacles faced whilst 
carrying out enforcement action.  

Very recently, we have been part of the infant stages of discussion with a consultant 
representative on behalf of Peel (Media) around the formation of an official ‘anti-social 
behaviour policy’ of their own. It is important that all partners are involved and take joint 

Page 9



6

ownership of the collective problem. If Peel do engage fully in this area, it can only 
have positive effect in reducing the anti-social behaviour.  

BARFF KENNEDY PSPO – ALLEYGATE On 9th December 2019, the Barff Kennedy 
PSPO was renewed for a period of three years (exp.08/12/22). 

CRAWFORD STREET, LANSDOWNE ROAD PSPO – ALLEYGATE 
On 10th October 2019, the Crawford Street, Lansdowne Rd PSPO was made and came 
into force on 6th November 2019 for a period of three years (exp. 05/11/22). The 
scheme was a new one and was funded by residents. 

Alley Gate Maintenance/repair
From 1st October 2018 to date, the team has processed 374 requests for maintenance 
or repair.

Licensing activity In addition to routinely providing statutory nuisance prevention 
guidance for Licence applications throughout the year, during the two weeks leading 
up to Christmas, an officer from the Environmental Protection team undertook a 
proactive role in multi-agency visits to 20 + licensed premises. The format of those 
visits was mainly educational, reminding licensees and their employees of their 
responsibilities during the particularly busy period. Matters addressed were; service of 
alcohol to drunken individuals, frequent and appropriate briefing for door staff, 
preservation of crime scenes and supporting enforcement agencies in any required 
prosecutions. The advice imparted proved invaluable following a stabbing incident 
which took place over Christmas. Staff implemented all of the required actions, which 
assisted in the offender being arrested very quickly. 

Upcoming and in progress;
Replacement of Noise Monitoring Equipment (NME)
Following issues identified with the future support of monitoring equipment which we 
currently rely upon and the recent failure ‘on-job’ of some of that equipment, it has 
been necessary to start the replacement process. Existing funds within the budget 
were identified and approved, and the equipment has now been procured. This 
replacement is essential to the service delivery and will minimise risk to the reputation 
of the authority and the negative outcome of legal proceedings, where we would 
normally rely upon the recordings made by the equipment. 
 
Review of Anti-social Behaviour Policy The council anti-social behaviour policy was 
authored some time ago and was last updated in 2016, with a further intended review 
date of 2018. It is the intention to review the policy in the coming months, in order to 
ensure it continues to be fit for purpose and that it accurately reflects the service we 
provide.  

Greater Manchester Police ‘101’ and online reporting review 
We have very recently engaged with the Greater Manchester Police project, reviewing 
how best to direct their customers to the most appropriate partner. 

Page 10



7

The emphasis is on the fact that the customer is not simply ‘abandoned’, having been 
informed it is the responsibility of the partner (i.e. SCC), but are then directed as closely 
as possible to the correct destination. 

From early conversations, requirements which have been identified as essential to the 
process are; ease of online reporting, site-navigation and the quality and actual timing 
of relevant information presented to the customer, as mentioned in the section above. 

Designated powers under Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 for 
housing providers & CPNs
In 2020, we intend to revisit the test pilot project which took place between 2016/ 2018, 
where powers under Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 to issue CPNs 
were designated to City West Housing Trust (now For Housing). This is in line with 
Salford’s recently adopted Housing Strategy and its associated action plan.
 
‘The Broadwalk’
On 16th January 2020, a strategy meeting took place involving;  EP team, GMP, 
NHS(Pendleton Gateway), Pendleton Together, Guinness Trust, Salford Precinct 
management, Achieve and Salix Homes.  

Although issues have significantly reduced, guidance and advice was given with 
regards to consistent and appropriate reporting of incidents to support requests for 
enforcement. Salford Precinct Management has indicated that relevant staff are to 
receive training specifically to assist in reporting and giving accurate appropriate 
accounts. 

Alcohol Consumption PSPO renewal 
Due to expire in October 2020, a full package for renewal consideration and 
consultation is currently being drawn together by the team. It is the intention to 
commence the renewal process in May, starting with a consultation period following 
the elections. 

Alley Gate PSPO renewals 
Salford City Council has 578 alley gating schemes consisting of 1351 alley gates 
covering 14,000 properties.  As per previous reports to the lead member, 178 of these 
schemes need to be changed to PSPOs in order for them to remain legal and 
enforceable, a full package for renewal consideration and consultation is currently 
being drawn together to address all existing schemes which will expire. 

Dog Control PSPO renewals 
Due for renewal in October 2020, a full package for consideration and consultation is 
currently being planned by the relevant officer with responsibility for Dog control. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Crime and Disorder Act 1998, Anti Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014

KEY DECISION: NO

Page 11



8

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
Community Safety Plan 2020 – 2023, Anti Social Behaviour Policy 2016

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
The ASB act and policy is applicable to all, any Equality Impacts in relation to individual 
cases are fully considered on a case by case basis

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 
Low – certain acts of ASB are high profile across the city and draw the attention of 
media outlets, having robust policies and procedures that are followed by team and 
the advice and guidance of legal ensures the reputation of the City Council is not 
brought into disrepute.  ASB legislation can and does infringe upon peoples humans 
rights, having robust policies and procedures that are followed by team and the advice 
and guidance of legal ensures that any infringement is reasonable, proportionate and 
justifiable and in the best interest of the whole community that the city council serves.  

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
N/A in relation to this report, legal advice is sought for every case of ASB.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
N/A in relation to this report – all staffing and associated costs are fully budgeted for 
in current council budgets

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
N/A in relation to this report – any contracts issued outside of the council follow 
council procurement rules

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
N/A in relation to this report

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
N/A in relation to this report – although ASB enforcement action has been brought 
where it will bring about a small benefit to climate change (ie cessation of fires)

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
None in relation to this report

Page 12



9

CONTACT OFFICER: David Rhodes TEL NO: 925 1262

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  ALL

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



1

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF PLACE  

TO

Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Committee – Monday 16th March 2020

TITLE: Waste and Cleansing Statistics

RECOMMENDATIONS: The report is for noting.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None

KEY DECISION: NO

DETAILS:

1. Waste Comparison costs for information (based on the 2017/18 RO Return). 
  
CIPFA 2017/18 benchmarking costs for the 32 North West Local Authorities and 9 Greater 
Manchester Local Authorities. 

The table below demonstrates in relation to CIPFA statistics and Greater Manchester, Salford’s 
costs are below the average. 

CIPFA Greater Manchester

Annual Waste and 
Recycling costs
per household

Highest = £96.34
Average = £44.38
Lowest = £13.34

Salford = £43.69

Highest = £66.79
Average = £53.36
Lowest = £26.03

Salford = £43.69

Annual Street 
Cleansing costs
per household

Highest = £54.76
Average = £23.07

Lowest = £9.06

Salford = £18.80

Highest = £72.83
Average = £25.12
Lowest = £18.75

Salford = £18.80

2. Fly Tipping statistics as recorded:

Nationally fly tipping reports are on the increase. 
 
For the 2018/19 year, local authorities in England dealt with over 1 million (1,072,000) fly-
tipping incidents, an increase of 8% from the 998,000 reported in 2017/18. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



2

Salford has seen an increase of just under 2%, in 2019, against 2018 calendar year (see below 
monthly figures over the two calendar years), despite growth in the City.  

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2018 482 340 314 325 416 347 451 323 255 313 245 161 5990

2019 327 342 311 336 418 267 445 235 346 357 341 360 6104

3. Fly Tipping hot spot areas

Below are the top 5 streets for fly tipping during 2019.

LIVERPOOL ROAD 
ECCLES

LOWER BROUGHTON 
ROAD SALFORD

ROMNEY STREET 
SALFORD

LANGWORTHY ROAD 
SALFORD

Winifred St Eccles
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Number of reports

Number of reports

4. Complaints relating to waste services

The waste services receives many service requests, for new bins, requests to remove fly 
tipping, contaminated bins and requests for service. The table below shows the number of 
‘actual’ complaints against the service.   

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

2018 14 19 12 8 10 16 7 12 10 7 4 3 123

2019 10 3 6 3 14 10 7 11 6 1 4 3 78

Page 16



3

5. Waste Collection - Missed Bins Statistics `

The data provided here is “raw” data, i.e the number of missed bins recorded, BEFORE any 
checks are made as to reasons why. For example, many will be where residents fail to put 
them out but report them as missed, road works preventing access, contaminated etc. 

2018 2019
January 1861 2021
February 1606 1547

March 1428 1393
April 1599 1627
May 2125 1890
June 1861 1498
July 1948 1819

August 1703 1918
September 1539 1604

October 1570 1774
November 1452 1602
December 1648 1716

TOTAL 20,340 20,490

Total 
Collections 

Annually

12,941,120 13,134,880

% Missed Bins 
annually

0.1572% 0.1554%

6. Prosecutions / Fixed Penalty Notices – issued by the Council

 
FPNs - For Dumping

Paid Prosecuted Total
2018 21 11 32
2019 22 17 39

 

 
Fly tipping 

prosecutions
2018 15
2019 9

 

Page 17



4

7. Prosecutions / Fixed Penalty Notices – Private Company 

In late 2018 / early 2019, the Environmental Protection team partnered with a new 
Environmental Enforcement Contractor (NSL) making our City a cleaner place to live, work 
and visit.

1408 x Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) were issued for non-parking offences (litter etc.) in the 
first 12 months; of which 962 paid (68% - reasons include; provision of false details, 
administrative error, progression.

8. CCTV statistics

The number of waste related prosecutions as result of CCTV coverage:-

Year Origin - CCTV
2018 6
2019 3

9. Recycling rates within GM including total waste per household (including trade 
waste)  

2017/2018 GM data
District Household waste 

collected per head of 
population KG

Recycling rate
%

Bolton 310 47.07
Bury 332 51.66
Manchester 296 38.56
Oldham 302 42.09
Rochdale 309 47.94
Salford 321 45.58
Stockport 349 57.53
Tameside 300 52.41
Trafford 328 58.53

Page 18



5

10. Domestic Waste Receptacle capacity

The table below shows the frequency of collections across Greater Manchester (who are part 
of the GM Waste disposal contract) and the waste capacity per week. This table demonstrates 
that Salford has the greatest waste capacity in Greater Manchester. 

Residual Co Mingle Pulpable Bio

Collection Collection Collection Collection

Total 
Waste 

Capacity 
WEEKLY

BOLTON
140 Litre
2 weekly

240 Litre
2 Weekly

240 Litre
2  Weekly

240 Litre
2 Weekly 430 litre

BURY 240 Litre                           
3 Weekly

240 Litre              
3 Weekly

240 Litre
3 Weekly

240 Litre
2 Weekly 360 Litre

MANCHESTER 140 litre               
2 Weekly

140 Litre
2 Weekly

140 Litre
2 Weekly

240 Litre                                     
Weekly in 

summer and 
fortnightly in 

winter

Summer 
450

Winter 
380 litres

OLDHAM 240 Litre                  
3 Weekly

240 Litre
3 Weekly

240 Litre
3 Weekly

240 Litre 
Weekly 480 Litre

ROCHDALE 240 Litre                    
3 Weekly

240 Litre
3 Weekly

240 Litre
3 Weekly

240 Litre 
Weekly 480 Litre

SALFORD 240 Litre                     
3 Weekly

240 Litre
2 Weekly

240 Litre
2 Weekly

240 Litre 
Weekly 560 Litre

STOCKPORT 140 Litre                     
2 Weekly

180 Litre
4 Weekly

180 Litre
2 Weekly

240 Litre 
Weekly 445 Litre

TAMESIDE 140 Litre                  
2 Weekly

240 Litre
2 Weekly

140 Litre
2 Weekly

240 Litre 
Weekly

500 Litre

TRAFFORD 140 Litre                     
2 Weekly

240 Litre                 
4 Weekly

240 Litre
4 Weekly

240 Litre 
Weekly 430 Litre

Bolton - have 60% of the borough on a fortnightly food and garden service and the remaining 
on a weekly food waste collection service. They also do slightly frequencies for rural properties.

11. Investment 

Resident engagement identifies waste as their number one priority. In response the City Mayor 
has agreed additional investment to the value of £585,000 per annum, as part of the 2020/21 
Budget. 

The detail below is where it is proposed that the £585,000 investment will be targeted: 

Page 19



6

Dedicated Teams – to clear fly tipping, alley ways. 

Annual cost for 4 x RCV teams (Hire vehicle plus 4 drivers and 4 labourers) = £256,680

It is estimated that there will be an additional 10 tonnes per week collected totalling up, 
resulting in an increase to disposal costs of approximately £50,000.  

TOTAL COST £306,680

Risk: There is a risk that recycling reduces, which affects our percentages. Also a risk that this 
sends the wrong message to residents that they don’t need to recycle. 

Education and Enforcement 

i. In order to increase recycling participation, reduce contamination and present greater 
opportunities for enforcement, the Council would introduce Behaviour Change Officers.

4 x Behaviour Change Officers.     

Total Cost £184,700 (including estimate for PPE, Equipment &Transport etc.)

ii. CCTV Cameras

Mobile demountable/deployable cameras in key fly tipping hotspots plus signage could be 
utilised as their presence will act as a deterrent for most offenders

Cost - 12 x CCTV cameras plus surveillance = £9,840, 12 x Signs = £600, Installation of 
cameras and signs = £3,000. 

Total Cost £13,440

Marketing and communications 

Specific marketing and communications campaign = £60k

This would enable a dedicated marketing campaign that would include a recycling/education 
pack for every household and bin tags for each bin.

Focus of campaign would include:

 Householder responsibility
 Awareness and ability to use HWRC
 Advertising 
 Social media specific campaigns
 Focus on waste management and recycling participation and reduction in 

contamination (Recycle more, Recycle right)
 Implications of not following procedure i.e. FPN’s for side waste etc.

Cost - £60,000

Street Litter Bins 

Page 20



7

Investment of £20,000, working with Vodafone, to implement digital sensors on 100 street litter 
bins. These will tell the Council how much waste is in the bins and will alert when approaching 
capacity, to enable a pro-active emptying of them. This will avoid these bins being full and 
overflowing onto pavements etc.  

         Cost - £20k

Total = £585K

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: N/A

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: N/A

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: David Seager TEL NO: 0161 925 1115

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2019/20 

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS

Date Topic/Action Responsible officer(s)

16th  March 2020 Waste Strategy and GM Contract - Update 

Fly-tipping/littering identification of hotspots and enforcement actions

Environmental Protection Team - Anti-Social Behaviour Prevention Activities 
Update

David Seager

David Seager

Jeanette Staley 

April 2020 No Meeting - Run Up to Local Elections

18th  May 2020 Citywide Commercial Catering - Update 

Low Carbon Rates 

Reduced Plastic Rates/ Greater Manchester Plastic Pledge Progress/Update

Dominic Clarke

Will Horsfall

Will Horsfall

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 6



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2019/20 

ABEYANCE LIST

Protocol for Managing Unauthorised Encampments - current legislation and requirements of local 
authorities (information provided further consideration by Panel required to be confirmed)

Stephen Kearney/
Peter Openshaw

Greater Manchester Fire Plan (consultation currently postponed) 

GMFRS Programme for Change 

Update on disabled access to cemeteries and surrounding grounds (TBC)

Unreported crime and its impact in resulting discrepancies in GMP crime statistics (TBC)

Salford City Council Call Centre Performance (TBC)

P
age 24



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2019/20 

Portfolio of the Board Membership 

1. Community Safety 
2. Communities and Neighbourhoods 
3. Regulatory Services (including Environmental Health, Trading 
Standards, Licensing) 
4. Operational Services (including Citywide, bereavement, 
operational transport, refuse and street cleansing, parks 
management, grounds maintenance) 
5. Salford Community Leisure Client 
6. Cultural strategy 
7. to be the designated Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee 
8. To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in this 
functional area.

Councillor Burch (Chair)
Councillor Karen Garrido (Deputy Chair)
Councillor Barnes
Councillor Fletcher
Councillor Humphreys
Councillor Mullen
Councillor Ryan
Councillor Turner
Councillor Walker
Councillor Joan Walsh
Councillor Warner
Councillor Wheeler

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on 17 February 2020 and matters arising
	4 Environmental Protection Team - Anti-Social Behaviour Prevention Activities Update
	5 Waste and Cleansing Statistics
	6 Work Programme 2019/20

